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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH 2024
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT




&7, Institutional Area

S.R Batioir & Co. LLP e T e s

Chartered Accountants
Tel: +91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Finaneizl Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Riveria Commercial Developers
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The director’s report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
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materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregulatities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements. '

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
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that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(i)vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2024;

(h) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 47 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foresecable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v.  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, and as explained in note 52 to the
financial statements, the Company, has used an accounting software which is operated by
a third-party software service provider, for maintaining its books of account. In the
absence of Service Organisation Controls report (SOC1 type 2 report), we are unable to
comment on compliance of the related requirements under Rule 11(g) of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014,

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E300005

-
per Amit Yadav

Partner
Membership Number: 501753

UDIN: 24501753BKHIJU2381

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 08, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” section of our report of even date

Re: Riveria Commercial Developers Limited (*the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i)(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(iXa)B)

(D) (b)

@) ©)

(i) (@)

() ()

(i) (@)

(iD) (b)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

All Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment properties have been physically verified by
the management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such
verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties {other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name
of the Company. The immovable properties comprise of the multiplex-cum-entertainment and
commercial complex constructed on land taken on lease for a period of thirty years as per
concession agreement entered with the New Delhi Municipal Corporation which is duly
registered with the appropriate authority.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024. The Company has not capitalized any
intangible assets in the books of the Company.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
propetty under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure
for such verification is appropriate.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iiXb) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(iii) (2)

(iii) (b)

(it) (¢

(iif) (d)

(iii) (¢)

(i) (f)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee ot provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Qrder is not applicable
t0 the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. .-

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iiiXf) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and security given in respect of which provisions of sections 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is applicable and hence not commented upon, the provision of section 186
of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans and advances given, investment made and,
guarantee and securities given have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products of the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.
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(vii) (b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(ix) (b)

(ix) (c)

(ix) (d)

(ix) (e)

(ix) (f)

() (2)

(x) (b)

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory
dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount of | Amount Period to | Forum
statute the dues Demand (Rs. | Deposited which the | where the
lakhs) under amount dispute s

protest. relates pending
(Rs. lakhs)

New Delhi | Non 25,648.75 - 12012-13 to | Hon’ble

Mungcipal Payment of 2016-17 Delhi High

Council, licence fees Court

1994

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Loan amounting to Rs.16,703.46 lacs are repayable on demand and terms and conditions for
payment of interest thereon have been stipulated. Such loan and interest have not been demanded
for repayment during the financial year. The Company did not have any other outstanding loans
or borrowing or interest thereon due to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has used
funds raised on short-term basis in the form of borrowings including interest accrued thereon
amounting to Rs.17,213.30 lakhs for long-term purposes representing funding for current year
losses.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or

partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi)(a)

(xi) (b)

(xi) (¢)

(xit) (2)

(xii) (b}

(xi)(c)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(xiv) (b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(xvi) (b)

(xvi) (¢)

(xvi) (d)

No fraud by the Company ot no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii}b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the
Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,
though it is not required to have an internal audit system under section 138 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xviXa) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi}{b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Group has one Core Investment Company as part of the Group.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx} (a)

(xx) (b)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, the ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions
and 1considering the Company’s current liabilities exceeds the current assets by Rs.17,213.30
lakhs, the Company has obtained the letter of financial support from the Holding Company,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

A

\ -

ICAI Ifln}fiegistration Number: 301003 E/E300005

{

per Amit Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 501753

UDIN: 24501753BKHIJU2381

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 08, 2024
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind As financial statements
of Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the intemnal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Riveria
Commercial Developers Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemmal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
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accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl l-'irwegistration Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 501753

UDIN: 24501753BKHIJU2381

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 08, 2024
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Riveris Commercial Developers Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(Al amonnts in T lacvs, unless otherwise stared)

Motes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 4,988.70 551532
Invesiment property 5 38,945.50 41,367 42
Financial assets
Oiher financial assets & L7128 104 .00
Deferred tax agset (ner} ¥ - -
Mon-current tax assets (net) 8 410.88 25263
Other non-cumrent assets o 6.69 574
Total non-current assets 44,523.05 47248 11
Current assels
[nventories 10 47.57 6755
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 659,22 359.35
Cash and cash equivalents 12 335.69 S02.69
Other baok balances 13 1,590.43 51129
Loans 14 0.40 =
Ovher financial assets 15 151.97 285.96
Other current assets 1o 27134 165.41
Total current assets 3,562.62 219225
TOTAL ASSETS 48,085.67 49,540.35
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17A 2.00 5.00
Other equity 12 3.828.39 5.648.04
Total equity 3,833.39 5,653.04
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 5313.67 2208798
Lease labilities 21 17.184.10 16,822 84
Other financial liabilities 20 643.66 245.80
Long-term provisions 2 8.8 2580
Other non-current babilities 23 106.05 7334
Total non-current liabilities 23,476.36 39,255.76
Curreat liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 24 16,703.46 -
Lease liabililies 29 32149 341,38
Trade payabies 25
- Dues of micro enterprises and sinall enterprises 75.17 3743
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 759.75 87707
Other financial liabalitisg 26 2,545.61 3,094 60
Short-term provisions 27 0.73 0463
Other current Liabilities 28 369.71 28045
Total current liabilities 20,775.92 4.631 56
Total liabilities 44,252.28 43,887.32
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITLES 48,085.67 49.540.36
Summary of material accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes fonn an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For S.R. Bailiboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Remstration Number; 30 1003E/E300005

hiembership Number: 501753

Place : Gorugram
Date : May 08, 2024
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Statement ol Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(A amonns in T facs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 30 9,899.98 9,091 84
Other income 31 1,027.97 588.21
Total income 10,927.95 9,680.05
Expenses
Cost of foods, beverages and consumables 32 862,43 856.85
Cost of power, fuel and facility maintenance expenses 33 2,499.95 1,873.20
Employes benefits expense 34 676.69 556.77
Depreciation and amortisation expense 33 3,110.60 3,120.31
Finance costs 36 4,116.93 4,058.29
Other expenses 37 1,483.36 1,187.77
Total expenses 12,749.96 11,653.19
Loss before tax (1,822.01) (1,973.14)
Tax expense:
- Current tax - =
- Deferred tax 38 z =
Loss for the year after tax (1,822.001) (1.973.14)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan (gratuity) 236 9.01
Income tax effect on above - -
Total Comprehensive loss for the year (1,819.65) (1.964.13)
Eamings per equity share [Face value per share ¥ 10 {March 31, 2023: 2 10)] 39
Basic eamnings per equity share () (3,645.74) (3.947.99)
Diluted earnings per equity share (%) (3,645.74) (3.947.99)
Summary of material accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Mumber: 301003E/E300005

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 08, 2024
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Riveria Commercja) Developers Limited
/ &

Baljeet\Singh Gautaky Handa
Director Director and Manager
DIN: 07156209 ¢, DiN: 10055143,

-k V}"'(CU\

Harshit Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

teyasi Srivastava
Company Secretary
M.NO. : A59017

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 08, 2024




Riveria Commereial Developers Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounis in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

Equity shares of € 10 each issued, subseribed and fully paid uwp Number of shares Amount (T in lacs)
Balance as at Apnl 1, 2022 50,000 500
Changes dunng the year 2 =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 50,000 5.00
Changes during the year - 5
Balance as at March 31, 2024 50,000 5.00

B Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus
Retained earnings |Equity component  of| Equ.ity component  of| Total
{Refer note 18)  (preference shares Optionaly  Convertible
{Refer note 17B) Debtentures

As @ April 1, 2022 {25.456.10) 5,568.27 27.500.00 7.612.17

Loss for the year (1,973.14) - - {1.973.14)
Other comprehensive income 9.01 - - 9.01

As at April 1, 2023 (27.420.23) 5.568.27 27,500.00 5,648.04

Loss for the year {1.822.01) - - {1,822.01)
Other comprehensive income 236 - - 2.36
As at March 31, 2024 (29.239.88) 5.568.27 27.500.00 3,828.39

The accompanying notes form an integra! part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

tembership Mumber: 501753

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 08, 2024
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax as per statement of profit and loss {1,822.01) {1,973 14)
Adjustment for
Depreciation 3,110.60 312031
Finance cost {including IND A3 adjustment of security deposit) 4,073.92 400016
Financial liability measured at amortised cost {refer note 30) (37.57 (4276)
Impact of rental straight-lining (refer note 30) 201.18 11993
Provision for doubtful receivables and advances 23.05 14117
Amount/Assets written off’ 138,97 1941
Unclaimed balances and excess provisions written back (333.39) (475.57)
Interest income (63.06) {36.39)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 5,291.69 4,873.12
Adjustment for change in working capital :
Increase in trade receivables (153.26) (69.32)
Decrease in inventories 19.98 16.77
Decrease in financial assets 66.31 32637
increase in other assets (311.05) (229 55)
Decrease in trade payables (54.83) (123 85)
[nerease in other financial liabilities 247.90 57413
[ncreasef(decrease) in provisions 5.54 {4.04)
Increase in other liabilities 159.54 5915
Net cash flows from operations 5,271.82 542298
Income tax paid {net of Refund) (158.25) (2 40)
Net cash flow from operating Activity (A) 5,113.57 541358
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment property and fixed assets (283.37) (195.37)
Movement in fixed deposits {net) (1,081,53) {83.08)
Interest received 65.45 36.39
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,299.95) {242 96)
C. Cash flows [rom financing activities
Interest paid (3,464.62) {3,37124)
Borrowings received {nert) 11,584.00 4,610.00
Repayment of borrowings (12,000.00) {7,400 00)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (3.880.62) (6,161 24)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (67.00) {990 62)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 902.69 1,893 31
835.69 902 69

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (refer note 12)

Summary of material accounting policies (Refer note 2 2)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date atached

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 08, 2024 51

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
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b

Director
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Harshit Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 08, 2024

Director and Manager
DIN: 10055143
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Shreyasi Srivastava
Company Secretary
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024

Corporate Information

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited (“the Company™ or “RCDL”), was incorporated in 2007 for entering into long term
lease agreement with New Delhi Municipal Corporation (NDMC) for the development, operation and maintenance of multiplex-
cum-entertainment and commercial complex at Yashwant Place, Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi. (“The
Chanakya™).

The Company is a public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act.
The registered office of the Company is located at The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi
— 110021

The Company is primarily engaged in Real Estate Development and owns a Shopping mall-cum-entertainment complex named
The Chanakya at Delhi, consisting of shops, commercial spaces, entertainment centre including but not limited to eateries,
restaurants etc. and basement for parking and other spaces etc. and further leases it to intending tenants. The Company is also
engaged in the restaurant and cafe business.

The Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the Board of Directors on May 08, 2024,

Basis of preparation and material accounting policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and presentation requirements of Division 11
of Schedule III 1o the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies.

The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (Z) and all values have been rounded to the nearest lacs, except
when otherwise indicated.

Summary of material accounting Policies

ay Current versus non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been ¢lassified as cuirent or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Companies Act, 2013, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current
liabilities, as the case may be. The company has identified its operating cycle as twelve months.

b) Foreign currency transaction
Functional and presentational currency
The Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian T, which is also the functional and presentational currency of the
company,

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing
rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

28
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024

¢) Investment properties

d)

e)

Recognition and initial measurement

Investment properties are properties held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties are measured
initially at their cost of acquisition including transaction cost. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on
investment properties is provided on straight line basis over the useful lives of the asset as follows: -

. ; Estimated Useful Life as per Schedule
Asset Category Management Flshmated Useful Life II to the Companies Act ,2013
(in years} .
{in years)
Building * 25.39 ! 60
Plant and Machinery 15 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10

* Building is taken on lease till February 2043, therefore the same is depreciated towards the remaining useful life.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management ¢stimate, depreciates certain items of
furniture and fixtures and office equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in
Schedule [I to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual value, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
prospectively.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the note 5. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external
independent valuer applying a valuation model acceptable internationally.

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects which are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/construction cost, borrowing costs and
other direct expenditure.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition.
The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appmpria‘t},an iti
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. e
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequernt measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Properties, Plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation on properties, plant and equipment is provided on Straight line basis over the useful lives of the asset as follows:

Asset Category Managem.ent '.':Sﬁmated Useful Sclii;:lr:aalt; (tlo[i:fuclol:::a?ieﬂe;ct,
Life (in years) 2013 (in years)
Building 25.39 60
Plant and machinery 15 15
Furniture and Fixtures-restaurant 8 8
Furniture and Fixtures-general 10 10
Office equipment ] 5 5
Computer | 3 3

* Building is taken on lease till February 2043, therefore the same is depreciated towards the remaining useful life.

The residual value, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items of
furniture and fixtures and office equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upen disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the asset is de-recognized.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventory comprises of below mentioned items:-
*  Stock for maintenance and recreational facilities (including Consumables, stores and spares)
*  Stock of liquor, food and beverages

Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other related incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs of necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the consideration received or receivable for providing retail spaces on operating lease, rendering of
maintenance service and other income in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities. Revenue is presented, net of taxes,
rebates and discounts (if any).

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for contingent rental income which is
recognised when it arises.




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024

Revenue is recognized as follows:

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Pursuant to the application of Ind AS 115 — ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers® effective from April 1, 2018, the
Company has applied following accounting policy for revenue recognition:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, taking into account contractually defined termns
of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the govemment and is net of rebates and discounts. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.

The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods
and services before transferring them to the customers.

Revenue is recognised in the income statement to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

The Company has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers” to recognise revenue
in the financial statements. The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Company
performs; or

b) The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enbhanced; or
¢} The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which
the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time and over a period of time based on various conditions as included in the contracts
with customers.

Point of Time:
Revenue from sale of food, beverages and liquor are recorded net of taxes and discounts as and when the service are rendered.

Over a period of time:
Revenue from service income, parking income is recognized on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms of the respective
contract on rendering of the services to customers.

Income from forfeiture of properties from customers is accounted for on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
contract,

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from maintenance service and other operating income as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful provision
of service. Upon completion of service, the amount recognised as contract asset are reclassified to trade receivables.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (f) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024

Coniract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
{whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction/production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme.The Company makes contribution to statutory
provident fund in accordance with the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,

The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to
the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognized in the balance
sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit/obligation at the balance sheet date, together with
adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation is calcuiated at or
near the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. This is based on standard rates
of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to each year end by reference to market
yields on government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Service cost on the
Company’s defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense. Net interest expense on the net defined benefit
liability is included in finance costs. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance sheet
date is recognised on the basis of discounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected
to be availed by the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than
one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit
and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Short-term employee benefits
Expense in respect of short-term benefits is recognized based on the amount paid or payable for the period during which services
are rendered by the employee.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
¢ Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
»  Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
setile the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is
disclosed.

Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting atiributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the peried attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multipies, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows afier the fifth year.

If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount
is reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly
reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024

1) Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)” on the principal ameunt outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is petformed at an instrument level,

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and
¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. When the Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. [n that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss for financial assets,

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with

the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with

the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider —
¢ All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.
e  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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(i) Trade receivables
In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the
balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date

(ii) Other financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at
the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis and
financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the [iability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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3) Reclassification of financial instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on imitial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident
to external parties. A change in the business model accurs when the Company cither begins or ceases to perform an activity that
is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

4) Offsetting of financial instruments

n)

0)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
seitle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its financial instruments such as derivative instruments, etc. at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Extemal valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant
liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 41)

- Investment properties (note 5)

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 42)

Tax

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authotities. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance
with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognized ouiside profit
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transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
1o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferved tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax asseis are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or foss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Sales and value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/Good and services tax paid, except:

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid s recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in
the balance sheet.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets, as follows:

+ Building 23.85 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section () Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The tease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as finance lease.

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of
the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments under such leases are apportioned between the finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly atiributable to qualifying assets in which case they are capitalized in
accordance with Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in the periods
in which they are incurred. A Leased Assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease term, capitalised leased assets are depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Operating Lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight
line basis over the lease term.
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Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned. Fit-out rental income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company
to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

q) Cumulative redeemable preference shares
Cumulative redeemable preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the tetts of the contract.

On issuance of the cumulative redeemable preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a
matket rate for an equivalent cumulative redeemable instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at
fair value (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the redemption option that is recognised and included in equity since cumulative
redemption option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of
associated income tax. The carrying amount of the cumulative redemption option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the cumulative redeemable preference shares
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

) Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

5)  Operating segments
An operating segment of a company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses and
for which discrete financial information is available. Ali operating segments are reviewed regularly by chief operating decision
maker to allocate resources and assess their performance. Performance is measured based on profit before tax as included in
internal management reports regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. The Company has two reportable
segments i.e. (a) rentals and maintenance of investment property, and (b) restaurant business. The Company is operating in India
which is considered as a single geographical segment.

2.3. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies amd estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures.

Jrudgements
Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options— Company as lessee
The Company determines the [ease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an

option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease,
if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination
options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to
renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either
the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
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or change in circumstances that is within its conirol and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or
to terminate,

The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of land. The Company typically exercises its
option to renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on provision of service if a replacement asset
is not readily available. Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only
when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Property lease classification — Company as lessor
The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined,

based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of
the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to
substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options— Company as lessor
As 3 lessor, the Company determines the [ease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered

by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not the lessee
shall exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for the lessee to exercise either the renewal or termination.

The Company has neither included the renewal period nor the period covered by an option to terminate the lease as part of

the lease term for buildings given to leases to tenants considering the following:

o Option of renewal of lease term is solely at the option of lessee and the Company is not reasonably certain that the lessee may
exercise the option of renewal, as this is outside the control of the Company.

e Considering the current market dynamics of rental market, the Company has estimated that lease term for the leases will be
‘non- cancellable’ period.

Estimates

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several external and intemal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of
the assets.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected
life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company
assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding warranties and guarantees. However, the actual future
outcome may be different from this judgement.

Valuation of investment property — Investment property is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40 there is a
requirement to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Company engaged independent valuation specialists
to determine the fair value of its investment property as at reporting date.

The determination of the fair value of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from
the assets (such as lettings, future revenue streams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environm matters and
‘ﬂ-.’.'.'_ -
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the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount rates applicable o those assets. In addition, development
risks (such as construction and letting risk) are also taken into consideration when determining the fair value of the
properties under construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is_required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

Contingent consideration, resulting from investments in equity instruments, is valued at fair value at the acquisition date
as part of consideration transferred. It is subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date using cost based
approach, using changes in financial asset or liability as part of the cost or reduction of the cost of the investment in
equity instruments, The determination of the fair value is based on discounted cash flows. The key assumptions take
into consideration the probability of meeting each performance target and the discount factor.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease, The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs {such as market interest rates) when available and
is required to make certain Company-specific estimates.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software, customer
relationships, IT equipment and other plant and equipment.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underiying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

2.4. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards that have an impact on the Company’s financial statements, performance and/or
disclosures.

There are certain amendments that apply for the first time for the year ended March 31, 2024, but do not have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107 also.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements,
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(i) Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies
and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on financial statements of the Company.

(iii) Ind AS 12: Imcome Taxes
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no [onger applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations. Consequential amendments have been
made in [nd AS 101.

The Company had no impact on financial statements of the Company.

3. Standards issued but not yet effective
There is no standard issued but not yet effective as on date which is effective from next year.
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4  Property, plant and equipment

Buildings Plant and machinery Furniture and Fixtures  Office equipment Total
Gross Block
As at April 1,2022 5,024 99 3,323.29 455.15 50.39 8,853.82
Additions during the year = 1048 1663 171 28.82
As at March 31, 2023 5,024 99 3,333.77 47178 5210 8,382 64
Additions during the year - 38.82 35.66 8.35 132.83
As at March 31, 2024 5,024.99 342259 507.44 60.45 9,015.47
Accmuiated Depreciation
As at April 1,2022 87274 1,557.11 21988 44.83 2,694.56
Depreciation charged for the year 198 97 413.57 58.91 1.31 672.76
As at March 31, 2023 1,0710.71 1,970.68 278.79 46.14 3,367.32
Depreciation charged for the year 199.52 397.20 60.21 .52 659.45
As at Mareh 31, 2024 1.271.23 2.367.88 33900 43.66 4,026.77
Net Block
As at March 31, 2023 3.953.28 1,363.09 192.99 5.96 5,515.32
As at Mareh 31, 2024 3.753.76 1,054.71 168.44 11.79 4,988.70

(i) Contractual obligations
Refer note 47B (i) for disclosure of contractual commitments for acquisition of property plant and equipment

(i) Capitalised borrowing cost
No borrowing cost was capitalised during the current year and previous year

{iii) Useful life of building

Building constructed on land covering area of 107,639 sqft is taken on lease from NDMC for 30 years starting from the possession year i.e. 2013, The
construction began in 2013, based on favourable arbitration award dated February 16, 2016 and was capitalised during the year 2018 Accordingly, depreciation
is charged over the remaining useful life of the lease. Refer note 2 2(e)

(This space has beern imtentionally left blank)
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5 [nvestment Property

Buildings
Gross Block
As at Aprl 1, 2022 24013 54
Additions during the year Q20
Disposals/Adjustments during the year 1941
As at March 31, 2023 23,994 33
Addition during the year 14.34
As at March 31, 2024 24,008.67
A Fpradd T, Papti
As at Apal 1, 2022 4,271 59
Depreciation charged for the year 94943
As at March 31, 2023 522102
Depreciation charged for the year 95187
As at March 31, 2024 6,172.89
Net Block
As at March 31, 2023 18.773 31
As at March 31, 2024 17.835,78

{i) Contractual obligations

Plant and
machinery

6,608 84

6,608 84
14.89
6,623.73

2,403 01
52857
2,936.58
529.68
3.466.26

3.67226
3,157.47

Furniture and
Fiztures

130 67

180 67

180.67

B9 44
2172
111 16
.78
132.94

6351
47.73

Refer note 478 (i) for disclosore of commacual commimments for the development of investment property

(i) Capitalised borrowing cost

Mo borrowing cost was capitalised during the current year and pravions year

(iiiy Useful life of building

Office
equipment

17 31

173

17.31

17.31

17 31

17.31

Right- of- use assets

23643 64

2264364

21.641.64

2,343 47
o447 83
3791 20
947,82
473912

18,852 34
17,904.52

Total

53,464 00
020
1941
33,444 79
29.23
5347402

9,629 82
2,447 55
12,077 37
2,451.18
14,538,582

41,367.42
38.945.50

Building constructed on land covering area of 107,639 sqft is taken on lease from NDMC for 30 years starting from the possession year ie 2013 The construction began in 2013,
based on favourable arbitration award dated February 16, 2016 and was capitzlised during the year 2013 Accordingly, depreciation is charged over the remnaining useful life of the

lease. Refer note 2.2{e).

(iv) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment Property

Particulars

Fental income derived from investment property (refer note 30}
Less: Direct operating expenses thar generated rental income*
Less: [nterest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 49)

Frofit arising (rom investment property before depreciation and indirect expenses

Less: Drepreciation on investment property
Less: Depreciation of cighi-of-use assets

Profit arising from investment property before indirect exnenses
* Direct opecating sxpenses that generated renral

(v} Fair value hierarchy and valuation technique

cominission, business promotion expenses and brokerage

March 31, 2024
5.079.78

37821

1,903,931
1,707.65
1,503.33

947.82

256,50

March 31, 2023
4,601 84

1,944 77
265707
1,499.72
47 83
20952

The Company's [nvesbment Property consist of multiplex and rerail mall, fair value has been determined based on the nature. characteristics and risks of each property As at March
3L, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the fair value of the property is ? 42,050 lacs and ¥ 39,840 lacs respectively The fair value of investment property has been determined by external,
independent property valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Repistered Valuers and valuation) Rules 2017, having appropriate recognised professional guslification and

recenl experience in the locanon and caregory of the property being valued The C

L
pany oblains indep

valuations for its in property

Iy and fair value

has been ised as Level 3 The fair value has bzen arrived using discounted cash flow peojections based on reliable estimates of furure cash Bows considening
growilh in rental of 5% (March 31, 2023: 5%) lony term vacancy rate of 3% (March 31, 2023: 3 %) and discount rate of 11.75% (March 31, 2023; 11 75%)

Reconciliation of fair value as at March 2024
March 31, 2023

Fair value 39.840.00

Reconciliation of fair value  at March 31 2023
March 31, 2022

Fair value 3517000

(vi) No inveshment property is pledged as security by the Company

[ncrease in fair
valne

2.210.00

[ncrease in faic
value
4,670 00
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42.050.08
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39,840.00
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]

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Other Financial Assets
(Unsecored, considered good onless otherwise stated)

Security deposits 70.88 7165
Unbilled receivables® 100.40 32358

171.28 104 .00

* Represent amount receivable for rental straightlining

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deflerred rax asset{net)

{n) Deferred tax liabilicy arisiog on accouvnt of :

[mpact of equity comp t of lative red e pref: ¢ shares {775.7T) 912.97)
[mpact of property, plant and equipment and inveshment property {2,042.14) (2,029.30)
Right 10 use {3,061.4%} (3,168.02)
hnpact of re zain on defined benefit plan (ratuity) - (1.03)
Gross deferred tax Habilities {5,879.40) (6,111.32)
Deferred tax asset arising on account of ¢

Unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward business losses 135108 6,687.23
Provision for employes benefits .45 .65
Lease liabilities 4,405.91 4,319.8%
Expenses allowed in subsequent years on payment basis 18.92 -
Others 51.80 15.00
Gross deferred tax assets 11,835.06 11,028.76
Met deferred tax assets £.955 66 491744

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the Bal Sheet

The Company revisited its business plans and future projections scenario and decided to recognise deferred tax assets only to the extent of deferred tax Liabilities as there is
no reasenable certainty supported by convincing evidences of their recoverability in the near fisture,

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(b) Income tax expense

Current tax . =
Deferred tax - £
Income tax expense a3 reported in the Statemeat of Profit and Loss = =

The Company follows Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-12) “Income Taxes™, as required by the Companies Act, 2013 read with and (ndian Aceounting Standards
notified under the Companies (Indian A ingr Standards) Rules, 2015. The significant component of deferred tax includes rerporary differences on account of carried
forward tax losses and un-absorbed depreciation. [n the ah of convincing e that sufficient taxable profits will be available against such carried forward tax
losses and un-absorbed depreciation, the Company has recognised deferred tax assets (net) in its books as on the balance sheet date to the exient of its deferred tax.
liabilities

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023

MNon-curreni tax assets (net)
Advance income taxes 410.88 25263
410.8% 252.63

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Other non-current assets

Prepaid expenzes 4.54 6.5%
Capital advances .15 215
6.69 874

March 31, 2024 March 31, 20223

Inventories

(Valued at bower of cost and net realisable value)

Food and beverages 6.45 811
Consunabies - 536
Liquor 41.12 54 08

47.57 67.55
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12

Trade receivables
Trade receivables
Receivable from related parties (refer note 50)*

Breakup for security details:
Secured, considered good**
Unsecored, considered good
Trade receivables - eredit impaired

[mpairment atlowance (allowance for bad and doubiful debrs)
Trade receivables - credit impaired

March 31, 2024
642.67

16.55
659.22

659,22

23.23
682.45

(23.25
659.22

March 31, 2023
328.61

3074
35935

35933

308 80
668.15

(308.30)
5935

* Ne trade oc other receivable are due from director or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade or other receivable are

due from finms or private companies respectively in which any director is parmer, a dirsctor or a member

** Trade receivables are secured by way of security deposits received from tenants which is equivalent to 3 to 6 ionths of monthly rentals

For terms and conditicns relating to Related party receivables, cafer Note 50

Outstandine for fallowine neriods from due dare nf navment

Particulars Less tham 6 6 months -
ennthe 1 vonr 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considersd pood 605,94 11.56 244 814 113
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have sigrificant increage
in gredit risk
(iiiy Undisputed Trada Raceivables - credit impaired 841 14.64 0.08 0.09
[iv} Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in
zredit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — cradit impamed
Total 614.36 26.21 k") 8,12 1.22
Ouistanding for foltowing periods from: due date of payment
Particulars Less than & 6 months -
- 2.
months | year | -2 years 2-3years More than 3 years
fi} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered zood 33922 20013
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase
in credit nisk
(i1i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 61.36 7981 13500 2962 301
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— congidered zood
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables — which have sipmificant increase in
credit nisk
{vi) Dispured Trade Receivables — credit impaired
Total 400 58 9994 13500 2962 301
“Unadjusted credits in the customer account have been adjusted in the earliest outstanding for the respective customers
March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- In cwrent accounts 827,60
Cash on hand $.09
835.69
Net debrt reconciliation
Thiz section sets ont an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debi for egch of the periods presented:
Particulars 31 March 2024
Mon-current borrowingz 5.513.67
Current borrowings 16,703.46
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 335.69
Net debt 21,381.44
cal
o
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Total
659.22

3.23

Toral
35935

308 80

668 15

March 31, 2023

898 (6
453
902 69

31 March 2023
2208758

902.69
21,18529
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15

Changes in liabilities arising from financial activities

Met debt as on March 31, 2024

" Interest on liabili
Particulars Sl component of prel'ert:nce Cash Nows I s
01, 2023 1024
shares
Borrowings { cumrent and non current) 1208798 545.15 (416.00) 32.217.13
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 902.69 - {67.00) 835.69
Net debt 21.155.29 545.15 {349.00) 2138144
Met debt as on March 312023
Asg on Apnl [nterest on liabili )
Particulars 01,2022 | component ofprefertgnoe Cash flows | “As0n Mareh 3L,
shares 2023
Borrowings {curment and non current) 24,386.77 49121 {2.790.00) 2208798
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1.393.31 - (990.62) 00269
Met debt 22,493 46 491.21 £1,799.38) 21,18529%
March 31, 2024 March 31, 223
Orher bank balances
Dreposits with the sriginal maturiry of more than 3 months but Jess than 12 months 1,590.43 51129
1,590.43 511.2%
Loans to others:
Loan to employeas 0.40 -
0.40 -
March 3, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other fnancial agsets
Unbilled receivables* 150,51 285 9%
Security deposits 1.46 -
151,97 28596
*|t includes of T 16,74 lacs (March 31, 2023: ¥ 285 96 lacs } on account of straightlining of rental income.
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Other corrent assets
Prepaid expenses 161.5¢ L1726
Cue from employees 015 G5
Advances to suppliers of goods and services 3577 TE8
Balances with government authocities 79.92 4012
277.34 165,41

(This space has been imentionally feft blank)
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17  Share capital
17A  Equity share capital
Authorised equity share capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
As at April 01, 2022
Changes during the year
As at March 31, 2023
Changes during the year
As at March 31, 2024

Issued equity share capital

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up
As at April 01, 2022

Changes during the year

As at March 31, 2023

Changes during the year

As at March 31, 2024

(a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

Number Amount in ¥
20,00,000 20000
20,00,000 20000
20,00,000 204,00

Number Amount in ¥

30,000 5.00
50,000 5.00
50,000 5.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in [ndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the share holders
in ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of ligmdation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts. The disteibution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the share holders in ensuing Annual General Meeting,
(b) Shareholding in the Company of the holding company:

Class of shares Number of shares T In lacs
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Equity shares of 210 each 50,000 50,000 5.00 5,00
DLF Home Developers Limited (including nominess thereof)
Total 50,000 50,000 5.00 5.00
(c) Details of shares held by holding company and sharcholders/ promoters holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of shareholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Number of shares % holding Nurnber of shares %4 holding
Equity shares of 210 each fully paid vp 50,000 100% 50,000 100"
DLF Home Developers Limited {(including nominees thereof)

1. 'As per records of the Company. including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares

2. The Company has neither issued any bonus shares nor has there been any buyback of shares in the current year and preceding five years

3. DLF Commercial Developers Limited has been amalgamated with DLF Home Developers Limited (DHDL) pursvant to Hon'ble NCLT Order dated
30th June 2022. Consequently, DHDL became the holding company of the Company

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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17 B Preference share capital
{a) Authorized preference share capital

Cumulative redeemable preference share of ¥ 100 each

As at April 01, 2022
Changes during the year
As at March 31, 2023
Changes during the year
As at March 31, 2024

(b) Equity component of 8,596,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of T 100 each issued and fully paid

As at April 01, 2022
[ncrease/decrease during the year
As at March 31, 2023
Increase/decrease during the vear
As at March 31, 2024

Number Amount in 2
88,00,000 8,300 00
88,00,000 8,200 00
8800000 8.800.00

Number Amovntin T
85.,96,000 5,568 27
85,96,000 5,568 27
$5,96,000 5,568.27

Note 17 covers the equity component of the issued cumulative redeemable preference shares The liability component is reflected in financial liabilities

(refer note 19)
in the of the
Class of shares

Cumulative Redeermable Preference Shares

Detalls of shareholders more than 5% shares in the

Class of share and shareholder

Cummulative Redeemable Preference shares of 100 each fully
paid up

DLF Home Developers Limited

and its subsidiaries:

Shareholder Relation March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
DLF Home Holding Company 85,96,000 85.96,000
Developers Limted

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares Mo of shares %% holding % holding
85.96.000 85.96.000 100% 100%

to various classes of shares

Class of shares

5,125,000 9 01% cumulative redeemable preference shares

56,000 0 01% cumulative redeemable preference shares

3,415,000 3 01% cumulative redeemable preference shares

Rights, preferences and restrictions { including restrictions on distributions of
dividends and repayment of capital) atiached to the class of preference shares

Preference shares bear a fixed dividend of 0 01% per annum payable on March 31
every financial year and to be paid within 30 days from the closure of the financial
year The said preference shares are at the option of the board of directors can be
redeemed at any time after the expiry of 6 months from the date of allotment (ie
June 27, 2008} but not later than June 26, 2028, The dividend rights are
cumulative. The Preference shares rank ahead of the Equity shares in the event of
liquidation. The presentation of the liability and equity portions of these shares is
explained in the summary of accounting policies

Preference Shares bear a fixed dividend of 0 01% per anoum payable on March
31, every financial year and to be paid within 30 days from the closure of the
financial year The said preference shares are at the optien of the board of directors
can be radeemed at any time after the expiry of 6 months from the date of allotment
(ie July 23, 2008) but not later than July 22, 2028. The dividend rights are
cumulative. The Preference shares rank ahead of the Equity shares in the event of
liguidation The presentation of the liability and equity portions of these shares is
explained in the summary of accounting policies

Preference Shares bear a fixed dividend of 0 01% per annum payable on March 31
every financial year and to be paid within 30 days from the closure of the financial
year, The said preference shares are at the option of the board of directors can be
redeemed at any time after the expiry of & months from the date of allotment (i e
August 18, 2008) but not later than August |7, 2028 The dividend rights ar
curnulative The Preference shares rank ahead of the Equity shares in the event of
liquidation The presentation of the liability and equity pottions of

explained in the summary of accounting policies
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18

184

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Other equity
Retained eamings (29,239.88) (27,420.23)
Equity component of Preference shares [refer note 17B(b)] 5,568.27 5,568.27
Equity component of Opticnally Convertible debenture [ refer note 18A] 27,500.00 27.500.00
3,528.39 5.648 04
(a) Retained earnings
As per last balance shest (27,420.23) (25,456.10)
Loss for the year (1,822,01) (1,973.14)
Other comprehensive income 2.36 9.1
{29,239.88) (27.420.23)
Nature and purpose of retained earnings.
Retained earmings are created from profit of the company
(b} Equity component of preference shares
Equity component of preference shares 5,568.27 5563827

Equity component of Optionally convertible debentures

During the earlier year, in compliance to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the Company issued 27,50,00,000
(.01% Optionally Convertible Debentures (QCDs) of 2 10 each amounting to T 27,500.00 lacs to DLF Commercial Developers Limited (‘DCDL’),
holding company, by way of private placement on preferential allotment basis, DLF Commercial Developers Limited has been amalgamated with DLF
Home Developers Limited {DHDL} pursuant to Hon'ble NCLT Order dated 30th June 2022 Consequently, DHDL became the holding company of the
Company For this purpose, existing unsecured Joan amounting to T 27,500 00 lacs has been adjusted as subscription money for the OCDs.

The consideration is oo the basis of fair valuation report obtained from an external valuer, relevant teoms of which are as under:

Optionally Convertible Debentures proposed to be issued to the investors shall have the following terms:

1 QCDs shall carry interest rate of 0,0{% p.a, and shall be payable on an annual basis

2 Maximum tenure of the OCDs shall be 10 years.

3. The Company may, at any time during the teoure of OCDs {i.e. within 10 years from the date of allotment of OCDs) may convert the OCDs into
equity shares of the Company in the ratio of 1:1 {i.e. [ equity share of the Company for each OCD issued by the Company} or redeem the OCDs at an
amaount equal to the fair value of such number of equity shares that would have been issued, had the OCDs been converted into equity shares of the
Company, or at par value of OCDs, whichever is higher. However, the Company needs to mandatorily choose either of the options during the tenure of
the OCDs

4. These OCDs meet the definition of ‘equity’ as prescribed in Ind AS 109, hence, the same has been accounted as equity capital and disclosed under
‘other equity” in these financial statements

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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20

u

12

13

15

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings {aon-current}
Unsecured loan from DLF Home Developers Limited, the Holding Company 17,119 46
Liability component of other financial insts
8,596,000 (March 31, 2023 8 5%6.0003 0 01% cumulative redesmable preference £.513.67 4,968 52
shares of T100 each fully paid up (refer note 17B (2 )
5.513.467 22087 93
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other financial liabilities (non-corrent)
Security deposils received 643.66 245 80
64366 3245 80
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Lease linbilities
Leasge liabilities (refer note 4%) 1718410 16,822 84
17.184.10 16822 84
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lomg-term provisions
Giratuiry (refer note 44) 25.8% 25 80
28.88 25 80
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Other non-current linbilities
Deferred income * 106.05 1234
106.05 134
*The deferred income relates to the income on di 1g of Security deposits received from lessees as per Ind AS 32 Fingncial Jnsiruments to be amortised in the remaining lease
period
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Borrowings (current) *
Unsecurad |oan from DLF Home Developers Limited 5,503.46 -
Unsecured loan from Raydhani Investments & Agencies Private Limiled 11,200.00 -
16,703.46 _

*The loans are repayable on demand in part or full and carties interest rates €8 8 75% per annum (March 31, 2023 § 5% per annum) for DLF Homes Developers Limited and @ 7 5% per
anmum ( Mareh 31, 2023: Nil) for Rajdhani Invesiments & Apencies Private Limited

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade payables
Drue of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer note 48) 75.17 3743
Due of creditors other than micrs enterprizes and small enterprizes 759.75 87707
£34.92 914 50
ended March 2024
v
More th:
. Mot Due Less than 1 1-2years 2-3years ore than Tatal
Particulars year 3 years
(1) Total vutstandine dues of micro enterprises and small enterornizes® 7517 AT
(ii) Totel outstanding dues of creditors other then micro enterprises and small 63049 12276 150 o6l 439 59,75
enterpnises
(i} Disputed dues of micro ises and small
(iv} Disputed dues of creditors olher then micro enterprises and small enterrises
Total 630.49 197,93 1.50 .61 4.3% 834.92

for the ended March 31 2023
Outstandingz for followine periods from invoice date

Mot Choe Lessv;':n ! l1-2years  2-3years  More than 3 years Total
(i} Total outstandine dues of micre enterprises and small enlerorises® 3743 3743
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other then micro enterprises and small 5771 28025 068 18 40 81707
enlerrises
(iii} Disputed dues of micro enterorises and small enterorises
[} Disputed dues of ereditors other Ihen micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 57174 31768 068 18 4 914 50

*In respect of total gutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small ememprises beyond the penod of 45 days from the due date and also as mentioned in the Form MSME-1 filed by the
Company with Registrar of Compames, there has been delay in payment to these MSME vendors due to non-submission of requisite d by the respective vendors Hence, the
Campany has been unable v process their payments and thus, has not accounted for interest on such delay, which is nol atributable to the Compary
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%

7

18

29

Other financial Mabilities (current)
Interest accrued but nol due an barowings
Capitzl eredmor*

Security deposits

* Capital creditors includes T ML (March 31, 2023: T NIL} payable to micro enterprises and small enlerprises
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities (refer mote 24)

i) Trade payables and creditors for capital goods are non interest bearing,

ii} For tenms and conditions relating to Relsted party, refer note 50

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management processes, refer note 42

P

Shori-term provisions
Graluity {refer note 44)
Leave encashment

Oiher curreat linbilities
Statutory dues

Advances from cuslomers
Defarred intome

Other payable

Lease liabilities
Lease lLiabilines frefer note 49)

(This space has beett intentionally left blank)
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March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,046.24 1,359 74

12.00 13380

145737 1.60) 06
2.545.61 3,094 60

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.61 044

0.12 01¢

0.73 Q63

Muerch 31, 1024 March 31, 2023
221.51 101 13

61.56 124.58

58.26 2550

23,38 2919

360 28045

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
321,49 341 38

32149 341.38
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30

30.1

30.2

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue from operations
(A) Reotal income * 5.079.78 4.601.84
5.079.78 4,601.84

* Includes T 37.57 Jacs (March 31, 2023: ¥ 42,76 lacs) income on account of financial Hability measured at amortised cost and T (201.18) lacs
{March 31, 2023: ¥ (119.93) lacs) on account of straight-lining impact of rental income

{B) Revenue from contract with customers

Disaggregated revenue information

Sales of food, beverages and liquor 3,125.15 2,982.05
Service mcome 1,269.66 1,363.63
Parking Income 150.39 [44.26
4,545.20 4,489.94

Other operating revenue
Others 275.00 0.06
275.00 0.06
Total Revenue from contract with customers (B) 4,820.20 4.490.00
Total Revenue from operations (A+B) 9,§99.98 9,09[.84

Timing of revenue recognition

Services ransferred at a point in time 3.550.54 3,126.31
Services transferred over period of time 1,269.66 [,363.6%
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,820.20 4.4590.00
Contiract balances

Trade receivable from contracts with customers 167.72 165.28
Contract assets 133.77 3407
Contract liabilities 25.60 124.58

Trade receivables are generally on terms of 7 te 30 days. Interest on delay in payment from customers(if any) is recognised as per terms of contracts.

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue eamed from maintenance service and other operating income as receipt of consideration is
conditional on successful provision of service. Upon completion of service, the amount recognised as contract asset are reclassified to trade
receivables.

Contract liabilities include advances received in respect of provision of maintenance services to the tenant.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Movement of contract liabilities
Contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 124.58 48.80
Amount of revenue recognised from amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of (124.58) {48.80)
the year
Amount received/adjusted against contract liabilities during the year 25.60 124.58
Contract liabilities at the end of the year* 25.60 124.58

* included under the bead "advances from customers” in note 28.
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Reconciling the amounnt of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price:-

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue as per contract price 4,820.20 4,490.00
Adjustment (if any) - -

4,820.20 4,490.00

There are no remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Performance obligation

The performance obligation of the company in case of maintenance service is satisfied over the time, using an input methed {0 measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because of customers simulianecusly receives and consumes the benefits provided by the company, The
company raises invoices as per the terms of the contracts, upon which the payment is due to be made by the tenant.

As per the terms of service coniract with the customers, the Company has right to consideration from customers in an amount that directly corresponds
with the value to the customers of the company's performance obligation completed till date. Accordingly, the company has used the practical
expedient under Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contract with customers' and has disclosed information relating to performance obligation to the exient

required under Ind AS 115

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other income
Interest from:
Bank deposits 63.06 36.39
Income tax refund 11.04 18.31
Liabilities no longer required written back 33339 47557
Miscellaneous income® 620.48 57.04
1,027.97 588.21
*t includes  535.00 lacs {March 31, 2023 Nil} on account of one time charges from the tenant,
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost of food, beverages and consumables
Inventory at the beginning of the year 67.55 34.32
Add: Purchases 842,45 84008
Less: Inventory at the end of the year {refer note 10) {47.57) {67.55)
862.43 856.85
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost of power, fuel and facility maintenance expenses
Facility maintenance expenses and generation/ production of electricity, heating, ventilation and 2,109.69 1,873.20
air conditioning expenses
Cost of fit-out 390.26 -
2,499,95 1.873.20
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 561.14 446,34
Contribution to provident and other funds 3543 20.93
Gratuity expense (refer note 44) 1L.97 12.90
Staff welfare 68.15 67.60
676.69 556,77
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March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
35 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depteciation on property, plant and equipment (refer nots 4) 659.45 672,76
Depreciation on investment property {refer note 5) 1,503.33 1,499.72
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 49) 947.82 94783
3,110.60 3,120.31
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
36 Finance cost
Interest expense on
Loans from related parties (refer note 50) 1,498.58 1,521.68
Financial liability measured at amortised cost 581.42 533.72
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 49) 1,993.92 1,944 77
Guarantee, finance and bank charges 43.01 58.12
4,116.93 4,058.29
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
37 Other expenses
Lease rent 5.86 4.56
Repair and maintenance 77.26 60.64
Registration Fees : 6.91
Legal and professional* 302.12 173.31
Business promotion expenses 378.21 32297
Printing and stationery 13.23 12.58
Service & maintenance 140.30 172.45
Business support service charges 40.40 47.88
Cotnimunication expenses 2.06 1.65
[nsurance 56.32 44.44
Rates and taxes 186.49 136.27
Recruitment and training expenses 18.53 4.84
Travelling and conveyance 30.54 25.19
Provision for doubtful receivables and advances 23.05 141.17
Amounts/Assets written off 138.97 -
' Claim and compensation 30.00 -
Miscellaneous expenses 40.02 3291
1,483.36 1.187.77
*Payment to auditors
As auditor
Starutory audit and limeted review fees 12.70 1270
Tax audit fees 2.00 2.00
Out of pocket expenses 0.57 1.93
15.27 16.63

A The Company did rot have average net profits over the three immediately preceding financial years, therefore there was no obligation for the Company
to allocate any funds towards CSR activities for the FY 2023-24, in accordance with Section 135(5) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules made
thereunder.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

38 Tax expense
Current tax = =
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - 2
lncome tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss = =

Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multinlied by statutory income tax rate for the vear indicated are as follows:

Particulars Macch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Accounting loss before tax (1,822.01) (1,973.14)

Tax at statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2023: 25.168%) (458.56) (496.60)
Adjustments on account of below mentioned differences:

Unrecognised deferred tax on current year losses 458.56. 496.60
Total Adjustments 458.56 496.60

Total (tax income) / tax expense . . 2 =
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{Al amonis in T lixcs, unfess otherwise stated)

39 Earning or (Loss) Per Share (EPS/LPS)
Basic EPS amonnts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the Weighted Average number of
Equity shares outstanding duting the year.
Dituted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit atiributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential
equity shares into equity shares.
The following reflects the income or {loss) and share data used in the Basic and Diluted EPS Computation:

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Loss per share
Net loss as per statement of profit and loss for the year {1.822,01) {1,973.14)
Less: Preference dividend for the year 0.86 0.36
Net loss atiributable to equity shareholders (1,822.87) {1,974.00)
Basic (EPS) (3) (3,645.74) (3,947.99)
Caleulation of Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS:
Weighred average number of equity shares outstanding ¥ 50,000 503,000
Totat weighted average number of shares outstanding 50,000 50,000
Weighted average number of equity shares {(Face value of Z10 each) for the calculation of Diluted 28,36,46,000 28.36,46,000
EPS
Diluted (EPS) (T (3,645.74) (3,947.99)
Calculation of Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS:
Weighted average number of equity shares 50,000 50,000
Weighted average number of Cummuative Redeesmable Preference Share 85,96.000 8$5,96,000
Weighted average number of OCDs 27,50,00,000 27,50,00,000

283646000 28.,36.46,000

*Since the effect of conversion of potential equity shares is anti-dilutive in nature therefore basic and dilutive EPS has been considered as same.

(This space has been intentionafly left blank)
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AH armoternts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stared)

41 Financial instruments by catepory

Fair valve of instrumenis measured at amortised cost
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Financial assets

Teade receivable 659,12 35935 659.22 35935
Cash and cash equivalents 835,69 902 69 835.69 902 69
Cither bank balances 1,5900.43 51129 1,590.43 329
Loans .40 040

Other financia! assets 323.25 389.96 323.25 18996
Total financial assets 3.408.99 216329 3.408.99 2,163 29
Financial ltabilities

Borowings 2LN7.13 2308708 2221713 22,087 98
Lease habilities 17,505.59 17,164 22 17,505.59 17,164.22
Trade payables 834,92 914 50 834.92 914 50
Other financial labilities 3.189.27 334040 3.189.27 334040
Total financial liabilities 43.746.1 43507 10 43.746.91 43,507 10

There are ne financial instruments that are fair valued, hence disclosure relating to fair value hierarchy are not applicable to the company

41 Fi ial risk o t
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations The Company’s principal financial assets inchude loans, trade and other receivables, cash and

cash equivalents &other bank balance that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks The Company’s senior
management is supported by a financial nisk committee that advises on financial dsks and the appropriate financial risk govemance framework for the Company The
financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives

i} Financial instrument by category

For amortised cost value the best astimate of Fair value.
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

FYTPL FYOCl Amortised cost EVTPL FvOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 659.22 59 35
Cash and equivalents 835.69 902 69
Dther bank balances 1,590.43 5112%
Loans 0,40
Oiher financial assets 32325 389 96
Total 3.408.99 216329
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 2221713 2208798
Lease hiabilities 17,505.59 17,164 22
Other financial Liabilities (Non-Curtent) 643.66 245 80
Trade payable 334,92 914 50
Other financial liabilities (Current) 2.545.61 3.094 60
Total 43.746.91 43,507 10

i} Risk Management objectives and policies
The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the
related impact in the financial statements
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A)

a)

by

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company under a financial instrument The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, [oans and financial assets measured at amortised cost The Company continuously monitors
defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls Credii risk related to cash & cash equivalent and bank deposit
is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversify bank deposit

Credit risk management

Creddis risk rating
The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories armived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the
class of financial assets

A: Low credit risk

B: Moderate credit risk

C: High credit risk

The for
Asset Company

credit loss based on the
Basis of categerisation
Cash and cash equivalents, 12 month expected credit loss/life time expected credit loss

other bank balances, loans
and other Anancial assets

Provision for expenses credit loss

A Low credit nsk

Other financial assets 12 month expected cradit loss/life time expected credit loss

Loan, trade receivables and Lifs time expected credit loss fully provided for
other financial assets

B: Moderate credit risk
C: High credit risk

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to mzke payments within the
agreed time period as per coniract Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between current and historical
economic conditions.

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy or a litigation decided against the Company. The
Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statement of peofit and
loss

In respect of trade receivables ,the company recognises provision for life time expected credit loss

Credit rating Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A: Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, Other bank 2,749.77 1,803.94
balances, Joans and deposits and other
financial assets
B: High credit risk Trade ceceivable 65922 35935

Credit risk exposure
Pravision for expected credit losses
The Company provides for expected credit loss based on 12 month and lifetime expecied credit loss for following financial assets —

March3 2024

Particulars Estimated gross Expected credil  Carrying amount net of impairmend
carrying amount at losses provision
deflault
Financial assets
Trade receivables 682.45 (23.23) 639.22
Cash and equivalents 835.69 835.69
Other bank balances 1,590.43 - 1,590.43
Loans 0.40 0.40
Other financial assets 323.2% - 323.25
March3 2023
Particulars Estimated gros: Expected credit Carrying amount net of impairment
carrying amount al losses provision
defauli
Financial assets
Trade receivables 668 15 (308.80) 35935
Cash and equivalents 2 69 902 69
Other bank balances 51129 51129
Other financial assets 380 06 38996
Tn respect of trade receivables, the Company considers provision for lifetime expected credit Toss Given the nature of business trade

receivables has moderate credit risk as the Company holds security deposits equivalents ranging from three to six months rentals, in case

historical trends indicate any shortfall between

loss

by the Company and amounts due from customers have been
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B)

0

—

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision- leans and other financial assets

Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade Receivables Loans (iher financial assets
Loss allowance on March 51, 2023 308,80

Allowance for expected credit lossinet) {285.57)

Loss allowance on March 31. 2024 13.23

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision- loans and other financial assets

Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade Receivables Loans Other financial assets
Loss allowance on March 31, 2022 62952

Allowance for expected credit loss{net) (320.72)

Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 308 30

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of finding through an adequate amount of committed
credit Facilities to meet abligations when due Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed
facilities

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows The Company takes into
account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates

Maturities of financial liabilities**
The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity gronpings based on their contractual maturities for all financial liabilities

March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-5 year More than 5 years Total
Borrowings* 17,749.70 5,513.67 23,263.37
Lease liabilities 1.708.24 7.537.64 40,919.03 30,164,91
Trade payables 834.92 834.92
Security deposits 1,431.40 882.38 2,313.78
Capital creditors 12.00 12.00
Total 21,736.26 13,933.69 40.919.03 76.588.98
March 31, 2023 Less than | year 1-5 year More than 3 years Total
Borrowings*® 1,359 74 17,119 46 4,968 52 23447 72
Lease liabilities 1,652 54 728141 42,383 51 51,817 46
Trade payable 914 50 914,50
Security deposits 1,602 64 260 50 in 1,934 25
Capital creditors 133 80 {3380
Total 5,663 22 24,661 37 47,925 14 7824773
*Includes intecest accrued on borowings amounting to ¥ 1,046 24 lacs 31,2023 1 74 lacs)

**Represent undiscounted valves

Market Risk

Interest rate risk

Liabilities

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctvate because of changes in market interest rates The company's fixed
rate bomowings are carried at amortised cost They are therefore not subject 10 interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the cammying amount nor the future
cash flows will floctuate because of a change in market interest rates

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Keeping in view of current market scenario

Titerest rote visk exposure

The variable rate to interest tate Below is the overall of the

Particulars March 31, 2024 arch 31, 2023
Fixed rate borowings™ 16,703.46 17.119 46
Total borrowings 16,703.46 17,119 46

* does not include 2 5,513 67 lacs (March 31, 2023 2 4,968 52 lacs) being liability component of compound financial instrument and Rs 1,046 24 (March 31, 2023 ¥
1,359 74 lacs) being interest accrued on borrowing

De
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Sensitrvicy
Profit or loss and equity is sensitive 10 higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. Since all the borrowing ace at fixed rate so
there is no interest rate exposure.

i} Assets
The company’s fixed deposits and security deposits ace carried at fixed rate. Thecefore, the said assats are not subject to interest rate nisk as defined in [nd AS (07, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of 2 change in market interest rates

43 Capital Management and Gearing Ratio

For the purpose of the Company's capital management is

-Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet

The Company manages its capital structure and make adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and risk chacacteristios of the underlying assets

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings (Current & non current including interest accrued but not paid) 23,263.37 2344772
Less ; Cash & Cash equivalents (Note 12) 83569 G 69
Net debit {A) 22,427.68 2254503
Total &quity 3.333.39 565304
Capital and Net Debt (B) 26.261.07 2819807
Gearing Ratio (A/B) 85.40% 79.95%

1. Debt is defined as long-term borrowings and short-term borrowings including interest on borrowings

2. Equity is defined as equity share capital and other equity including reserves and surplus.

The Company has been monitoring Net debt to Total Capital plus net debt ratio during the year as agaimst Net debt to equity ratio monitored in the previous year
However, there is no change in the overall objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Tiis space has been intentionally left blank}
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44 Employee benefit obligations

(A)

(B)

Provident fund
The company make contribution to provident and other funds. This is post employment benefit and is in the defined benefit plan, The contributions
made by the Company towards employees provident fund during the year amounts to T 33.18 lacs (March 31, 2023:  27.60 lacs).

Gratuity plan (non funded)

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, which is unfunded. The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment
of Gratuity Amendment Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of
gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary
multiplied for the number of years of service. the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 22.28 years (March 31, 2023:
23.41 years).

Risks associated with plan provisions

The company is exposed to number of risks in the defined benefit plan, Most significant risk pertaining to defined benefit plan and management's
estimation of the impact of these risks are as follow:

Salary growth risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. An increase in the salary
of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Interest rate risk

A decrease in interest rate in future years will increase the plan liability

Life expectancy risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of plan participants both during
and at the end of the employment. Ap increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Withdrawals risk
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact the
plan liability.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Bifurcation of ected defined benefit at the end of the in current
Particulars March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Giratuity 0.61 28.88 0.44 25.80

Movement in the in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 26.24 39.32
Current service cost 9.7 9.67
Interest cost 2.26 3.23
Actuarial loss/(gain) during the year 2.36) 5.0
Benefits paid 8.13) (10.45)
Acquisition adjustment 1.77 {6.52)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 29.49 26.24

Amount in the statement of and loss is as under:

Description March 31. 2024 March 312023
Current service cost 971 9.67
Interest cost 2.26 323
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 11.97 12.90
Breaku of Actuarial other income
Description March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumption 0.22
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption 125 (2.28)
Actuarial (gain¥loss on arising from experience adjustment (3.81) (6.73)
Total 2.36) (9.01}
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For determination of the of the the actuarial assu were used
Particulars March 31. 2024
Financial Assumptions

Discount rate 7.09%
Future salary increase 1.00%

Demographic Assumptions

Retirement age 58/60/62/65/68

Mortality rate (100 % of IALM: 2012 - 14)

Withdrawal Rate (%)
Upto 30 years
From 31 to 44 years

Above 44 vears

(100 % of IALM:
2012 - 14) Ultinrate

March 31. 2023

7.32%

7.00%

58/60/62/65/68

(100 % of IALM:
2012 - 14) Ultimate

3%
2%

1%

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are determined close
to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the

related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical experience.

for assum as at
Particulars March 31. 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 29.49
a} Impact due to increase of (.50 % 230

b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %

Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 29.49

a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 %

b} Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % {2.36

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these not calculated.

March 31. 2023

26.24
(2.25)
252

26.24
2.54
(2.9

Sensitivities are rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable.

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

The are contributions to the defined benefit for future on undiscounted basis.
Year March 31. 2024
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 0.63
Between 2 and 5 years 3.56
Beyond 5 years 115.85
120.04

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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March 31. 2023
0.45

2.51

121.69
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of amount reflected in financial statements

A Reconciliation of profit for the year March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Segment profit
Resturant Business 132.76 23549
Rental and maintainance 2,479.02 2,075.03
Segment operating profit 2,611.78 2,.310.52
Reconcilitaion of segment operating profit to operating profit
Other than allocated above :
Finance cost 4,082.43 4,023.88
Other expense 351.36 259.78
Loss before tax (4,433.79) {4,283.66)
Income tax expense - =
Loss after tax (1,822.01) {1,973.14)
B Segment Assets
Resturant Business 5,724.69 5,289.19
Rental and maintainance 24,456.46 25,398.82
Segment operating assets 30,181.15 30,688.01

Reconcilitaion of segment operating assets to total assets
QOther than allocated above

Investment property (Right to use assets) 17,904.52 18,852.34
Total assets 48,085.67 49,540.35
C Segment Liabilities

Resturant Business 1,046.03 813.76
Rental and maintainance 2.437.29 2,461.63
Segment operating liabilities 3,483.32 3,275.39
Reconcilitaion of segment operating liabilities to total liabilities

Borrowings { non current) 5.513.67 22.087.98
Lease Liability (non current) 17,184.10 16,822.84
Borrowings (current} 16,703.46 -
Lease Liability {current) 321.49 341.38
Other financial [iabilities (current) 1,046.24 1,359.74
Total liabilities 44,252.28 43,887.32

D  Geographic information
Segment Revenue by location of customers

Within India 9,899.98 9,091.84
Outside India - -
9,899.98 9,091.84

Segment Assets

Within India 48,085.67 49.540.35

Outside India . -
48,085.67 49,540.35

Non current operating assets by geographical location *

Within India 44,523.05 47,248.11

Outside India 5 5
44,523.05 47,248.11

current tax assets and other non current assets.

vy e
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amotinss in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

46

47

i)

Capitalisation of The Chanakya Project
The Company was incorporated for the development and operation of a commercial complex with Cinema Hall at the Yashwant Place Commercial
Complex land covering area of 107,639 sqft. The ownership of the land lies with NDMC whereas the Company holds the possession for a period of 30
years starting from the possession year in 2013. The consiruction for the project began in 2013, based on favourable arbitration award dated February
16, 2016 and was completed in July 2017. The project constitutes a mall, cinema hall, restaurant and cafe.

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities not provided for:

New Delhi Municipal Council (NDMC) raised a default ¢laim on the Company on account of non-payment of license fees on January 03, 201 2. The
Company obtained an interim injunction from the Hon ble High court of Delhi against the said demand on the ground that no such amount is payable as
NDMC failed to handover clean possession of the land to the Company. The matter went into arbitration and on February 16, 20186, the arbitration
tribunal decided the matter in favour of the Company stating that the Company is not liable for any amount to NDMC till the completion of the project
and commencement commercial operations at the multiplex. NDMC filed application before Delhi High Court challenging the arbitration award and the
same is pending before Delthi High Court for disposal. The demand raised by NDMC for license fee as on March 31, 2024 is T 25,648.75 lacs (March
31, 2023: ¥ 23,531.03 lacs), The Company completed the project and received Completion Certificate issued by NDMC on July 07, 2017. The
Company is paying License Fee to NDMC on regular basis w.e.f July 07, 2017, Based on the legal opinion obtained and favourable arbitration order,
the management believes that there will be no economic ouiflow and hence, no liabilicy will devolve on the Company in the said matter, Accordingly,
no provision has been made in the financial statements for such amountis).

Arrears of fixed cumulative dividend on preference share;

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Preference dividend on 5,125,000 0.0[1% cumulative redeemable preference shares (Qutstanding for
. 8.20 7.69
12 years) excluding taxes thereon
Preference dividend on 56,000 0.01% cumulative redeemable preference shares (Qutstanding for 12 0.09 0.08
years) excluding taxes thereon * '
Preference dividend on 3,415,000 0.01% cumulative redeemable preference shares (Quistanding for 846 512

12 years} excluding taxes thereon
Since the Company is in losses, above cumulative dividend has not been paid till date

Commitments
(i) The estimated value of contracts as at March 31, 2024 remaining to be executed on commitments not provided for (net of advances) is T 54.56 lacs
(March 31, 2023: T NIL) under property, plant and equipment

(ii) There is no capital commitment under investment property

{This space has been intentionally left blank}
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(A amounss ine T lacs, undess otherwise stated)

48 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006:

49

Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 7517 3743
accounting year,*

it} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment Nil Nil
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during ¢ach accounting year,

iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid Nil Nil
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act;

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Nil
v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above ar¢ actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of Nil Nil

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

* Includes capital creditors ¥ NIL {March 31, 2023: T NIL) (refer note 26)

The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

information available with the Company.

Leases

(i} Company as a lessee

The Company entered into concession agreement with New Delhi Municipal Council (NDMC) for a period of thirty years and has constructed and
operating multiplex-cutn-entertainment and commercial complex at Yashwant Place Community Centre, New Delhi.

The Company also has certain leases of warehouse space / rental accommodation for its employees with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of
office equipment with low value. The Company applies the “short-term lease” and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases,

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use asset recognised and the movement during the period:

Particulars Land and building
As at April [, 2023 18,852.34
Additions -
Depreciation expense (947.82)
As at March 31, 2024 17.904.52
Particulars Land and building
As at April 1, 2022 19,800.17
Additions -
Depreciation sxpense (947.83)
As at March 31, 2023 18.852.34

{This space has been imtentionally left blank}
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the period:

Particulars March 31, 2024
As at April 1,2023 17,164.22
Additions -
Accretion of intergst 1,993.92
Payments (1,652.55)
As at March 31, 2024 17,505.59
Current 17,184.10
Non-current 321.49
Particulars March 31, 2023
As at April 1, 2022 16,704.85
Additions -
Accretion of interest 1,944 77
Payments ([,485.43)
As at March 31, 2023 17,164.22
Cumrent 16,822.84
Non-current 341.33

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 42.

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 11.5%, with maturity in February 2043.

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 947.82
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1,993.92
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses} 5.86
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 2,947.60
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 947.83
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1,944.77
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 4.56
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 2,857.16

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Z 1,652.55 lacs in March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: T 1485.43 lacs). The Company alsc had non-
cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of € NIL (March 31, 2023 T NIL) lacs and ¥ NIL (March 31, 2023 T NIL) lacs respectively in
the year ended March 31, 2024,

The Company has taken leased asset under non-cancellable operating leases.

{This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Ad amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The contractual future minimum lease payment in respect of these leases as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are on undiscounted basis.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Upto one year 1,708.24 1,652.54
Twao to five year 7,537.64 7,281.41
More than five years 40,919.03 4288351
Total 50,164.91 51,817.46

{ii) Company as a lessor

During July 2017, the Company has completed the construstion of "The Chanakya", multiplex-cum-entertainment and commercial complex, at Yashwant
Palace, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi. The complex commenced it operations since September 2017. The Company has entered into operating leases on its
investment propecty portfolio. These leases bave terms between 1 and 18 years. All leases usually include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental

charge once in three years according to prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Company during the year is ¥ 5,079.78 lacs (March
31,2023: ¥ 4,601.84 lacs).

Future minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable period of operating leases as at March 31, 2024 are, as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Upto one year 2,983.22 2,430.87
Two to five year 3,518.38 1,909.77
More than five years 1.409.94 1,479.54
Total 7.911.54 5.820.18

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al mmownts in T lacs, anless otherwise stared)

50 Related party disclosores
In accordance with [nd AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures” of Companies {Accounts} Rules 2014, the names of related parties along with
aggregate amount of transactions and year end balances with them are as follows:

i} Related Party relationship ¢

a) Ultimate holding company
Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private Limited

b) latermediate holding company
DLF Limited

¢) Holding company
DLF Home Developers Limited

¢) Fellow subsidiary companies at any time during the year
Ananti Builder and Construction Private Limited
DLF Property Developers Limited (Formely DLF Emtportio Restaurant Limited)
DLF Builders and Developers Private Limited {formerly: SC Hospitality Private Limited)
Lodhi Property Company Limited
DLF Universal Limited
DLF Recreational Foundation Limited ( DLF Golf Resorts Limited and DLF Homes Services Private Limited merged w.e.f. June 15, 2023)

d) Joint venture of holding company at any time during the year
DLF Power & Services Limited (Joint venture of DLF Limited}
DLF Cyber City Developess Limited (Joint venture of DLF Limited)
DLF Emporio Limited (Joint ventute of DLF Limited)

¢) Key managerial personnel (KMP) or enterprises under the control of KMP of entities having joint control over the holding
company or their relatives

Mr. Gautam Handa (w.e.f. 26 October 2023) {Manager)

Ms. Apama Sud Bajoria {till 25 October 2023} (Manager)

Mr. Ankur Maheshwari (till 25 April 2023} (CFO)

Mr. Harshit Gupta {w.e.f. |1 May 2023) (CFQ)

Ms, Shreyasi Srivastava (Company Secretary)

Pure Home & Living Private Limited (Formerly DLF Brands Private Limited)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the (inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AH amontnts in T lucs, anless othernise stated)

$1 During the current year, the Company hag charged the Common Area Maintznance (“CAM™) revenue {included under the head “Revenue from Qperations™) from fenants on
provisional basis, based on management’s estimate of cost incurred However, post the year-end, the Company will obtain an mdependent party cerntificate of actual
expenditure incurred towards maintenance charges for the year ended March 31, 2024, The management believes that no material adjustments will arise in CAM revenue
which will affect the current period financial statements.

52 Rule 11 {g} of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 {“rule”) stipulates that where the Company has used accounting sofrware for maintaining its books of account
whether it has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software anong other
requirements, as prescribed in the aforesaid Rule. The Company has used an accounting software which is operated by a third-party software service provider, for maintaining
its books of account, Management is not in possession of Service Organisation Controls report (SOC] type 2 teport) to determine whether 1he requirements of above rule bhas

been met.
53 Other statutory information:

{i} The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initrated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

(ii} The Conpany does not have any ions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the starutory peried.
{iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Viral Currency during the financial year.

{(¥) The Coimpany hag not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity({ies), including foreign entities (Intenmediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianes

{vi} The Company has not received any fund from amy person(s) or entity(ies), mcluding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or

otherwise} that the Company shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ulimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii} The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that bas been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessnents under the [ncome-tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961).

As per our report of even dawe anached
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of yh¢ Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Riveria Commerti velopers Limited
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